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Directors’ report

The Directors of iSelect Limited and its controlled entities (the ‘Group’) submit herewith its financial report in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2012. iSelect Limited was incorporated on 7 March 2007 and is the holding
Company for the iSelect Group, comprising heaith, life and general insurance sales, mortgage brokerage and media
and finance referral services.

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors in office during or since the end of the financial year are:

Damien Waller Managing Director/ Executive Chairman (elected to Executive Chairman
on 16 March 2012)

Matthew McCann Chief Executive Officer — appointed 7 February 2012

Martin Dalgleish Non-Executive Chairman — ceased 16 March 2012

Shaun Bonett Non-Executive Director

Leslie Webb Non-Executive Director

Michael MclLeod Non-Executive Director

Patrick O'Sullivan Non-Executive Director

Greg Camm Non-Executive Director - appointed 20 August 2012

COMPANY SECRETARY

Trevor Jeffords Appointed — 7 February 2012

Matthew McCann Ceased — 7 February 2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the course of the financial year were health, life and general insurance sales,
mortgage brokerage and media and financial referral services.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the current year (2011: nil}. No dividends have
been paid during the financial year, or to the date of this report.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The Group achieved a net profit after tax for the year ended 30 June 2012 of $12,929,000 (2011: $10,657,000).

This financial report reflects the financial performance of the consolidated Group from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
and the financial position of the consolidated Group at 30 June 2012.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

Given the nature of its business the Group is not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulation
under any law of the Commonwealth of Australia or any of its States or Territories.

The Group has not incurred any liability (including any liability for rectification costs} under any environmental
legislation.
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INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the financial year, the Group paid a premium of $48,000 to insure the Directors, secretary and executive
officers of the Group.

The liabilities insured are costs and expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that
may be brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of the Group.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE GROUP

In March 2012, Bupa Australia Pty Ltd issued legal proceedings against iSelect in the Federal Court, which are due
to be heard at trial in 2013. In October 2012, Bupa Australia joined two iSelect Directors, Damien Waller and
Matthew McCann to the proceedings. iSelect intends te vigorously defend the allegations which relate to alleged
misleading and deceptive advertising. iSelect has also brought its own cross claim against Bupa Australia Pty Ltd
and its Managing Director for misleading and deceptive conduct.

No other proceedings have been brought on behalf of the Group nor has any application been made in respect of
the Group under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001,

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

On 19 August 2011, iSelect Limited announced an off-market takeover bid for all of the shares of Infochoice
Limited for total consideration of $33.538 million. On 14 November 2011, iSelect Limited acquired Infochoice
Limited in an off market takeover.

On 3 November 2011 iSelect moved into its new premises on 294 Bay Road, Cheltenham.

In the opinion of the Directors, other than the above, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of
the Group during the financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

On 20 August 2012, the repayment date of the $35 million of current borrowings with Goldman Sachs Lending
Partners LLC {Facility Agent) & Goldman Sachs & Partners Australia Capital Markets Limited (Arranger} (“Goldman
Sachs”} was extended by agreement under normal commercial terms to 17 December 2012.

On 28 September 2012 and 5 October 2012, a total of $28.829 million was raised through the issue of 1,558,351
shares at $18.50 a share to institutional and sophisticated investors. These funds were used to repay $20.729
million of the current borrowings with Goldman Sachs.

On 30 October 2012, a new 525 million facility was entered into with Credit Suisse AG under normal commercial
terms, with a repayment date of 20 December 2013. It is the Director’s intention to draw down on this facility on 1
November 2012, subject to certain procedural conditions being met. On this date, it is the Director’s intention to
then fully repay the remaining current borrowings of $14.271 million to Goldman Sachs.

Other than the matters discussed above, in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the
Group, to affect significantly the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of
the Group, in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE RESULTS
Except as so disclosed, information on likely developments in the Group’s operations in future financial years and

the expected results of those operations have not been included in this report because the Directors believe it
would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.
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ROUNDING OFF

The Group is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with the Class
Order, amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed by the Group in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the Auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is
set out on page 4 of this report.

NON AUDIT SERVICES

The following non-audit services were provided by the Group's auditor, Ernst & Young. The Directors are satisfied
that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors
imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The nature and scope of each type of non-audit service provided means

that auditor independence was not compromised.

Ernst & Young received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of non-audit services:

CONSOLIDATED

2012 2011
$ $

Other Services:
- tax compliance 44,700 47,800
- assurance related 33,500 25,650
- due diligence 65,000 94,615
- capital and fund raising 79,000 58,674
- regulatory compliance 36,000 26,400
Total 258,200 253,139

REGISTERED OFFICE
294 Bay Road, Cheltenham Victoria 3192

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

rod
Damien Waller
Executive Chairman

Melbourne
30 October 2012




Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia
GPO Box 67 Melbourne VIC 3001

Tel: +&1 3 9288 8000
Fax: +61 3 88507777
wWRLeY.com/au

“H”“HHH“H}Hmllmliinu e Yot .

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of iSelect Ltd

in relation to our audit of the financial report of iSelect Ltd for the financial year ended 30 June 2012, to
the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Erngt-#

Ernst & Young

Ashley Butler
Partner

Melbourne
30 October 2012

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 2011

Notes $ '000 S 000

Sales revenue 5 111,928 72,442
Cost of sales (56,970) (36,026)
Gross Profit 54,958 36,416
Other income 83 24
Share based payments expense 22 (557) (658)
Administrative expenses 5 (29,955) {16,604)
Relocation costs 5 813 {1,592)
Acquisition costs 5 {(1,260) (217}
Profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 24,082 17,369
Amortisation 5 {2,069} (617)
Depreciation 5 {1,985) (2,568)
Profit before interest and tax 20,028 14,184
Interest revenue 875 841
Interest expense 5 (1,770) -
Profit before tax 19,133 15,025
income tax expense 6 {6,204} (4,368}
Profit for the period 12,929 10,657
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to 12,929 10,657

owners of the Group
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Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2012

2012 2011
Notes $'000 $'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 20,012 17,499
Trade and other receivables 8 15,338 5,111
Net present value of future trail commission 9 26,534 20,239
Other assets 10 1,160 1,053
Total current assets 63,044 43,902
Net present value of future trail commission 9 64,925 41,241
Property, plant and equipment 11 9,380 1,969
Intangible assets 12 37,048 3,678
Total non-current assats 111,353 46,888
Total assets 174,397 90,790
Liabilities
Trade and cther payables 13 21,246 9,520
Provisions 14 4,232 3,423
Borrowings 15 35,000 -
Other 313 -
Total current liabilities 60,791 12,943
Provisions 14 2,858 183
Net deferred tax liabilities 6 17,742 11,321
Total non-current kabilities 20,600 11,504
Totai liabilities 81,391 24,447
Net assets 93,006 66,343
Equity
Issued capital 16 49,759 36,582
Share based payments reserve 2,384 1,827
Business combination reserve 5,571 5,571
Retained earnings 35,292 22,363
Total Equity 93,006 66,343
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 2011

Notes 57000 $'000

Receipts from customers 80,925 53,532

Payments to suppliers and employees (81,287) (56,791)

Net cash flows from/{used in) operating activities 7 (362) (3,259)

Interest received 875 841

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8,456) (1,562)

Purchase of investment 4 (31,348) -

Purchase of intangible assets {4,948) (2,445)

Net cash flows from/{used in) investing activities {43,877) (3,166}

Proceeds from issue of shares 13,177 16,486

Proceeds from borrowings 35,000 -

Interest paid {1,425} -

Net cash flows from/{used in) financing activities 46,752 16,486

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,513 10,061

e eginning of the period 17499 7,438
- at the end of the period 7 20,012 17,499
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2012

Share
based Business
payment Issued combination Retained
reserve Capital reserve Earnings Total

57000 $'000 $'000 4000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 2011 1,827 36,582 5,571 22,363 66,343
Profit for the period - - - 12,929 12,929
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comp.rehenswe income i i i 12,929 12,929
for the period
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Share based payment expense 557 - - - 557
tssues of share capital - 13,177 - - 13,177
Balance at 30 June 2012 2,384 49,759 5,571 35,292 93,006
Balance at 1 July 2010 1,169 20,096 5571 11,706 38,542
profit for the period - - - 10,657 10,657
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comp-rehenswe income ) ) ) 10,657 10,657
for the period
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Share based payment expense 658 - - - 658
Issues of share capital - 16,486 - - 16,486
Balance at 30 June 2011 1,827 36,582 5,571 22,363 66,343
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

1. Corporate information

The financial report of iSelect Limited for the year ended 30 June 2012 was authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 30 October 2012,

iSelect Limited is a Company limited by shares incorporated in Australia and is a holding entity whose
principal activity during the financial year was the holding of investments in its wholly owned
subsidiaries iSelect Health Pty Ltd, iSelect Life Pty Ltd, iSelect Mortgages Pty Ltd, iSelect Media Pty Ltd,
iSelect General Pty Ltd, Infochoice Limited, iSelect Services Pty Lid and Tyrian Pty Ltd. On 16 July 2010
iSelect Limited converted to an unlisted public Company.

The Group's registered office is 294 Bay Road, Cheltenham.
The nature of the operations and principal activities are described in the Directors’ Report.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial report has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets, which as
noted, have been measured at fair value.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.

b} New accounting standards and interpretations

The Group has adopted the following new and revised Accounting Standards issued by the AASB that
are relevant to its operations:

Reference Title Application Application date
date of for Group
standard
AASB 2008-12 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 1 January 1 Juky 2011
[AASBs 5, 8 108, 110, 112, 119, 133, 137, 139, 1023 & 1031 and 2011

interpretations 2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052)

Makes numerous editorial changes to a range of Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations.

AASB 124 (Revised) The revised AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures (December 2009) simplifies 1 January 1 July 2011

the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning and 2011

eliminating inconsistencies from the definition, including:

(a) The definition now identifies a subsidiary and an associate with the
same investor as related parties of each other

(b) Entities significantly influenced by one person and entities
significantly influenced by a close member of the family of that
person are no longer related parties of each other

() The definition now identifies that, whenever a person or entity has
both joint control over a second entity and joint control or

significant influence over a third party, the second and third entities
are related to each other.
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for the year ended 30 June 2012

do not.

two groups: those that correspond to an JASB Interpretation and those that
Entities are required to apply each relevant Australian
Interpretation in preparing financial statemenis that are within the scope
of the Standard. The revised version of AASB 1048 updates the lists of
Interpretations for new and amended Interpretations issued since the June
2010 version of AASB 1048.

Reference Title Application Application date
date of for Group
standard
AASB 1048 AASB 1048 identifies the Australian Interpretations and classifies them intc 1July 2011 1 july 2011

The following Australian Accounting Standards have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
effective and have not been adopted for this annual reporting period:

Reference Title Summary Application | Impacton Application
date of Group financial date for
standard report Group
AASE 10 Consolidated AASB 10 establishes 3 new control mode! that applies to 1 January The Group does | 1July 2013
Financial all entities. It replaces parts of AASB 127 Consolidated 2013 not expect any
Statements and Separate Financial Statements dealing with the material impact
accounting for consolidated financial statements and ac a result of
UIG-112 Consofidation — Special Purpose Entities. this new
standard.
The new control model broadens the situations when an
entity is considered to be controlled by another entity
and includes new guidance for applying the model to
specific situations, including when acting as @ manager
may give control, the impact of potential voting rights
and when kolding less than a majority voting rights may
give control.
Censequential amendments were also made to other
standards via AASB 2011-7.
AASB 12 Disclosure of AASB 12 includes all disclosures relating to an entity’s 1 January This 1 July 2013
Interests in interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates 2013 amendment will
Other Entities and structures entities. New disclosures have been have disclosure
introduced about the judgments made by management impacts only
t0 determine whether control exists, and to require and is not
summarised information about joint arrangements, expected to
associates and structured entities and subsidiaries with have a material
non-controlling interests, impact on the
disclosure.
AASE 13 £air Value AASB 13 estzblishes a single source of guidance for 1 January The Group is 1 huly 2013
Measurement determining the fair value of assets and liabilities. AASB 2013 currently
13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair considering the
value, but rather, provides guidance on how to impact of this
determine fair value when fair value is required or standard.
permitted. Application of this definition may result in
different fair values being determined for the relevant
assets.
AASB 13 also expands the disclosure requirements for alk
assets or liabilities carried at fair value. This includes
information about the assumptions made and the
qualitative impact of those assumptions on the fair value
determined.
Consequential amendments were also made to other
standards via AASB 2011-8.

10
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments will be
classified based on (1) the objective of the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets;
{2) the characteristics of the contractual cash
flows.

(b) Allows an irrevocable election on initial
recognition to present gains and losses on
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading in other comprehensive income.
Dividends in respect of these investments that are
a return on investment can be recognised in profit
or loss and there is nc impairment or recycling on
disposal of the instrument.

{c} Financial assets tan be designated and measured
at fair value through profit or loss at initial
recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or fabilities, or recognising the gains and
losses on them, on different bases.

Consequential amendments were also made to other
standards as a result of AASB 9, introduced by AASB
2008-1% and superseded by AASB 2010-7 and 2010-10.

have a direct
impact on the
measurement
and recognition
of amounts
disclosed in the
financial report.

Reference | Title Summary Application | Impacton Application
date of Group financial date for
standard report Group
AASB Amendments to | AASB 2012-5 makes amendments resulting from the 1 January The Group does | 1July 2013
2012-5 Australizn 2009-2011 Annual lmprovements Cycle, The Standard 2013 not expect any
Accounting addresses a range of improvements, including the material impact
Standards following: as a resuit of
arising from this new
Annua!l * repeat application of AASB 1is permitted {AASB 1}; and standard
Improvements
2069-2011 » clarification of the comparative information
Cycle; and requirements when an entity provides a third balance
sheet (AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements},
AASB 9 Financial AASB 9 includes reguirements for the classification and 1 January These 1 Jely 2015
Instruments measurement of financial assets. It was further amended 2015 amendments
by AASB 2010-7 to reflect amendments to the accounting are only
for financial liabilities. expected to
These requirements improve and simplify the approach affect the
for ctassification and measurement of financial assets presentation of
compared with the requirements of AASBE 139, The main the Group's
changes are described below. financial report
and will not

11
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of iSelect Limited and its
controlled entities as at 30 June each year {'the Group'}.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which
is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the
Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

+ the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

+ the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; less

+ the net recognised amount {generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounis related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for
within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions, have been eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be
recovered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to
be consclidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group.

Where there is loss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements include the results
for the part of the reporting year during which iSelect Limited has control.

Business combination reserve

The internal group restructure performed in the 2007 financial year, which interposed the holding
Company, iSelect Limited, into the consolidated Group was exempted by AASB 3 Business
Combinations as it precludes entities or businesses under common control.

The carry-over basis method of accounting was used for the restructuring of the iSelect Group. As such
the assets and liabilities were reflected at their carrying amounts. No adjustments were made to
reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. No goodwill was recognised as a result of
the combination and any difference between the consideration paid and the ‘equity’ acquired was
reflected within equity as an equity reserve entitled “Business Combination Reserve”,

12
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

e) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next
annual reporting year are:

Revenue Recognition

Change in estimate

in the prior financial year, revenue was recognised at the point in time where the customer made their
first payment with the relevant fund and the insurer accepted the underlying risk.

Due to improvement in the Group’s technology and internal processes and further historical trend
data, the Group can now determine at the point where a customer is referred to a fund / provider and
compare such information to fund/provider receipts invoicing. This now assists in determining
whether it is probable that the Group will receive revenue in relation to that customer, thereby making
its measurement reliable on the basis of the probability of a ‘referred’ sale becoming a ‘financial’ sale.
Therefore, during the current financial year the Group changed its estimate for recognising revenue,
resulting in a one-off change in estimate impact of $7.0 million to revenue. Aside from the systematic
recognition of revenue going forward, no further impacts of this change are expected to occur.

Where this information cannot be reliably measured, the Group continues to recognise revenue at the
time a customer makes its first payment to the fund / provider.

Present Value of trail commissions

The Group has elected to account for trail commission revenue at the time of selling a product to which
trail commission attaches, rather than on the basis of actual payments received from the relevant fund
or providers involved. This method of revenue recognition requires the Directors and management to
make certain estimates and assumptions based on industry data and the historical experience of the
Group. In undertaking this responsibility, the Group engages Deloitte Actuaries & Consultants Limited,
a firm of consulting actuaries, to assist in reviewing the accuracy of assumptions for health, general and
life trail revenue. The iSelect Mortgages trail commission is a Director valuation and is based on the
same principles as outlined above. These estimates and assumptions include, but are not limited to:
termination or lapse rates, mortality rates, inflation, risk free and other discount rates, counter party
credit risk, forecast health fund premium increases and the estimated impact of known Australian
Federal and State Government policy.

The full impact of any private health insurance rebate and other legislative changes is still yet to be
determined with any known certainty as at the date of this financial report. Estimates of the likely
impact of announced changes have been considered by the Group's actuaries at the reporting date.
The Directors consider this method of trail commission recognition to he a more accurate
representation of the Group’s financial results. This method is further detailed in Note 2 {f).

Clawback provisions

Marketing fees received from certain insurance funds can be clawed back in the event of early
termination of membership. They vary across the insurance industry and insurers and are usually
triggered where a referred member terminates their policy. Each supplier fund and/or insurer has an
individual agreement and the clawback pericd ranges between 0 and 24 months depending on the
fund. The Group provides for this liability based upon historic average rates of attrition.

13
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

e} Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

f)

Taxation

The Group’s accounting policy for taxation requires management's judgement as to the types of
arrangements considered to be a tax on income in contrast to an operating cost. Judgement is also
required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised on
the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unrecouped tax
losses, capital losses and temporary differences, are recognised only where it is considered more likely
than not that they will be recovered, which is dependent on the generation of sufficient future taxable
profits,

Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits depend on management’'s estimates of
future cash flows. These depend on estimates of future sales volumes, operating costs, capital
expenditure, dividends and other capital management transactions. Judgements are also required
about the application of income tax legislation in respect of the availability of carry forward tax losses.
In undertaking this responsihility, the Group has engaged tax advisors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to
assess these judgements and provide an opinion on the availability of carry forward tax losses as at 30
June 2012. These judgements and assumptions are subject to risk and uncertainty, hence there is a
possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations, which may impact the amount of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised on the statement of financial position and the
amount of other tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognised. In such circumstances, some
or all of the carrying amounts of recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities may require adjustment,
resulting in a corresponding credit or charge to the statement of comprehensive income in future
periods.

Provisions for employee entitlements

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date using the discounted cash flow
methodology. The risks specific to the provision are factored into the cash flows and as such a risk-free
government bond rate relative to the expected life of the provision is used as a discount rate. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
resulting from the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Research and development costs

Internal project costs are classified as research or development based on management’s assessment of
the nature of each cost and the underlying activities performed. Management performs this
assessment against the Group’s development costs policy which is consistent with the requirements of
AASB 138 Intangible Assets.

Share based payments
Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions in relation to share based payments have been
discussed in note 2(t).

Other provisions

Other provisions included the net provision for make good and onerous contracts recognised in the
previous financial year in relation to the previous office lease of 973 Nepean Highway,
Moorabbin. During the financial year, management negotiated a subletting arrangement and a release
from certain make good requirements. To the extent such provisions were not required, they were
reversed in the current financial year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

14
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

f)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Fee Revenue
The Group primarily earns two distinct types of revenue: marketing fees and trail commission.

(i) Marketing fees

Marketing fees are upfront fees earned upon new members joining a health fund, initiating a life
insurance policy, obtaining general insurance products, or mortgages via iSelect. Marketing fees may
trigger a ‘clawback’ of revenue in the event of early termination by customers as specified in individual
health fund agreements. These clawbacks are provided for by the Group on a monthly basis by utilising
industry data and historical experience.

(ii) Trail commission

Trail commissions are ongoing fees related to customers referred to individual funds or applied for
mortgages via iSelect. Trail commission revenue represents commission earned calculated as a
percentage of the value of the underlying policy relationship of the expected life and in the case of
merigages a proportion of the underlying value of the loan. The Group is entitled to receive trail
commission without having to perform further services. On initial recognition, trail revenue and
receivables are recognised at fair value, being the present value of expected future trail revenue
receivables discounted to their net present value using discounted cash flow valuation techniques.
These calculations require the use of assumptions.

The key assumptions underlying the fair value calculations of trail revenue receivable at reporting date
include: lapse and mortality rates, commission term, premium increases and discount rate,
incorporating risk free rates and estimates of the likely credit risk associated with the funds and credit
providers.

It is the Directors’ responsibility to determine the assurnptions used and the fair value of trail revenue.
In undertaking this responsibility, the Group engages Deloitte Actuaries & Consultants Limited, a firm
of consulting actuaries, to assist in reviewing the accuracy of assumptions and the fair value model
utilised to determine the fair value of health, life and general fund trail revenue and the accompanying
asset. The iSelect Mortgages trail commission is a director valuation and is based on the same
principles as outlined above. Subsequent to initial recognition and measurement, the trail revenue
asset is measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of the trail revenue asset is adjusted to
reflect actual and revised estimated cash flows by recalculating the carrying amount through
computing the present value of estimated future cash flows at the original effective interest rate. The
resulting adjustment is recognised as income or expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

Interest

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues {using the effective interest method, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument)
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Click revenue
Revenue is recognised when an Internet user clicks on a paying advertisers link.

Other Revenue

Revenue for contracted services, including advertising and subscription revenue, is recognised
systematically over the term of the contract. Revenue for services provided other than pursuant to a
defined period contract is recognised during the month services are provided.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the |ease at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liahility.

Finance charges are recognised as an expense in profit and loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or
the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of
the lease term.

Leases where the |lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as the
lease income.

Cperating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised when they are received and
amortised over the life of the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined ahove, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Trade and other receivables

All trade and other receivables recognised as current assets are due for settlement within no more
than 30 days for marketing fees and within one year for trail commission. Trade receivables are
measured on the basis of amortised cost and trail commission is measured at fair value.

Recoverability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongeoing basis. Debts which are known
to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubt as to
collection exists.

Income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the
declaration of dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

» temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss

s temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates and jointly controlled
entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future

» taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill

s tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long
as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement period or in the profit or
loss.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that
its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many
factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates
and assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may
become available that causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing
tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilised. The Group's tax advisors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have provided an opinion on
the probability of availability as at 30 lune 2012, Deferred fax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Additional income tax expenses that arise from the distribution of cash dividends are recognised at the
same time that the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised. The Group does not distribute
non-cash assets as dividends to its shareholders.

Tax consolidation legislation
iSelect Limited and its wholly-owned Australian conftrolled entities have implemented the tax
consolidation legislation. Members of the tax consclidated group have entered into a tax funding
agreement. Each entity is respansible for remitting its share of the current tax payable (receivable)
assumed by the head entity.

In accordance with UIG 1052 and Group accounting policy, the Group has applied the “separate
taxpayer within Group approach” in which the head entity, iSelect Limited, and the controlled entities
in the tax consolidated Group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts.

17




i}

k)

ISELECT LIMITED — FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

Income tax

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, iSelect Limited also recognises the current tax
liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits
assumed from controlled entities in the tax consclidated Group.

The allocation of taxes to the head entity is recognised as an increase/decrease in the controlled
entities intercornpany accounts with the tax consolidated Group head entity.

Other taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

¢ where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

* receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. Cash flows are included in the statement
of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and
financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are classified as
operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the parts is incurred.
Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation.

Depreciation is calculated over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Useful life Method
Computer software/equipment 2-5 years Straight-line method
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 8 years Straight-line method
Leasehold Improvements 510 6.5 years Straight-line method
Motor Vehicles 3 years Straight-line method

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item} is included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period the
item is derecognised.

Impairment

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, with
recoverable amount being estimated when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.
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Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, unless the asset's value in use can
be estimated to be close ta its fair value. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash-
generating units exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The asset or cash-generating unit is then
written down to its recoverable amount.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangibles
assets acquired in a business combination is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are either reviewed at the end of each reporting period or
amortised over the life of the asset. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by
changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate.

Amortisation is calculated over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Useful life
Research and Development costs 2-5 years
Trademarks & Domain names indefinite
Computer Software 2-4 years
Goodwill indefinite
Customer Contracts 3 months

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash-generating unit [evel. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed at each reporting period to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and is made on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on
an internal preoject is recognised only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

19




* 2

ISELECT LIMITED — FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

m) Intangible Assets (continued)

o)

attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Following the initial recognition of the
development expenditure, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. Any
expenditure so capitalised is amortised over the period of expected benefit from the related project.

Web site development costs, customer lists and brand names capitalised as an intangible asset are
amortised on a straight line basis with a useful life as detailed above.

Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For the
measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 2{c}).

Subsequent measurement of Goodwill is measured at cost, tested for impairment annually. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those
units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Investments

Investments in controlled entities are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

Impairment of assets

The Group monitors throughout the year whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets and the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value. In such cases the
asset 1s tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. When the
carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverahle amount, the asset or cash-
generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Impairment losses relating to continuing operations are recognised in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. . A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
Such reversal is recognised in statement of comprehensive income.
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Impairment of assets (continued)

After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of the reporting date that are unpaid and arise when
the Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and
services.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive
income net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
borrowing cost.

Employee benefits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to
the reporting date. These benefits include wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave.

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and any other employee benefits
expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal
amounts based on remuneration rates which are expected to be paid when the liability is settled. All
other employee benefit liabilities are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outffow to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. In
determining the present value of future cash outflows, the market yield as at the reporting date on
natiohal government bonds, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
liability, are used.

Employee benefits expenses and revenues arising in respect of wages and salaries, non-monetary
benefits, annual leave, long service leave and other leave henefits; and other types of employee
benefits are recognised against profits on a net basis in their respective categories.
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Share based payments

The Group provides benefits to its employees (including key management personnel} in the form of
share-based payments, wherehy employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over
shares (equity- settled transactions).

During the year there were currently three plans in place to provide these benefits:
¢ the Employee Share Option Plan, which provides benefits to employees, including Directors;
e CEO Plan, which provides benefits to the Chief Executive Officer; and
+ Ninemsn Option agreement, which provides benefits to ninemsn, a major shareholder.

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the date at which they were granted. The fair value was determined by
the Directors and management using a Binomial model.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions. The cost of equity-
settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled {the vesting period)}, ending on the date
on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting date}.

At each subsequent reporting date until vesting, the cumulative charge to the statement of
comprehensive income is the product of (i} the grant date fair value of the award; {ii} the current best
estimate of the number of awards that will vest, taking into account such factors as the likelihood of
employee turnover during the vesting period and the likelihcod of non-market performance conditions
being met; and (iii) the expired portion of the vesting period.

The charge to the statement of comprehensive income for the period is the cumulative amount as
calculated above less the amounis already charged in previous periods. There is a corresponding credit
to equity.

Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are contingent and will be adjusted if more or fewer
awards vest than were originally anticipated to do so. Any award subject to a market condition is
considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition is fulfilled, provided that all
other conditions are satisfied.

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee, as measured at the date of modification.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

Comparative balances

Except as disclosed in note 2{e), accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
year. Where expenses have been reallocated between departments or within expense lines, the
comparatives for the previous year have been reallocated also to assist comparability between the
years.
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Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established,
the Group recognises any impairment loss on assets associated with the contract.

Interest expense

Interest expense comprises interest expense on borrowings and is recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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3. Financial risk management and objectives and policies

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contracts and interest
rate swaps to hedge certain risk exposures. It does not operate internationally and is not exposed to either
securities price risk, foreign exchange risk or commodity price risk.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
foreign currency risk and fair value risk. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage
different types of risks to which it is exposed. These include monitoring levels of exposure to interest rate
risk and assessmenis of market forecasts for interest rates. Ageing analyses and monitering of specific
credit allowances are underiaken to manage credit risk, liquidity risk is monitored through the development
of future rolling cash flow forecasts and comprehensive capital management planning.

The Board of Directors is continuing to review the Group’s risk and capital management framework and has
an Audit and Risk Committee to aid and oversee this process.

The Group’s policies in relation to financial risks to which it has exposure are detailed below.
(a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk,
commadity price risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market
risk include loans and borrowings, trail commission receivables, deposits, available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instruments.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, net present value of future trail
commission receivables and borrowings. Interest on borrowings is denominated in the currency of the
borrowing and that are matched by the cash flows generated by the underlying aperations of the Group.
This provides an economic hedge without derivatives being entered into and therefore hedge accounting is
not applied in these circumstances. The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk
exposures in existence at the reporting date:

2012 2011
Notes $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 7 20,012 17,499
Trade and other receivables 8 15,338 5,111
Net present value of future trail commission 9 26,534 20,239
Non Current
Net present value of future trail commission 9 64,925 41,241
126,809 84,090
Financial Liabilities
Current
Trade and other payables 13 21,246 9,520
Borrowings 15 35,000 -
56,246 9,520
Net Exposure 70,563 74,570

24




ISELECT LIMITED ~ FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

3. Financial risk management and objectives and policies (continued)

{a) Market Risk (continued)

At 30 lune 2012, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held
constant, post tax profit would have been affected as follows:

Post Tax Profit
Higher/{Lower)

2012 2011

$'000 $'000
TOTAL
Consolidated
+19% {100 basis paints) (1,897) (1,189)
-1% (100 basis points) 2,074 1,295
TRAIL COMMISSION
Consolidated
+1% (100 basls points) {2,037) (1,311)
-1% (100 basis points) 2,214 1,417
CASH AT BANK
Consolidated
+1% {100 basis points}) 140 122
-1% {100 basis points) (1.40) {122)

Judgements of reasonably possible movements

The movements in profit are due to higher/lower interest income from cash balances and higher/lower net
present value of future trail commission. The sensitivity is higher in 2012 than in 2011 because of higher
net present value of future trail commission.

(b} Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure. Such exposure arises from purchases by an
operating entity in currencies other than the functional currency.

(¢} Creditrisk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash management eguivalents
through receivables with customers and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The Group has exposure to credit risk associated with the health, life and general funds and mortgage
providers, with regard to the fair value calculation of the trail commissions {as discussed in note 2{f} and
outstanding receivables. Estimates of the likely credit risk associated with the health, life and general funds
and mortgage providers are incorporated in the discount rates {one of the assumptions used in the fair
value calculation). Any risk in relation to other revenue has been reflected in the provision for doubtful
debts recognised.
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3. Financial risk management and objectives and policies {continued)

(c} Credit risk (continued)
Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
1o credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Carrying amount

2012 2011

Notes $'000 5'000

Cash and cash equivalents 7 20,012 17,499
Trade and other receivables 8 15,338 5,111
Net present value of future traii commission 9 91,459 61,480
Total 126,809 84,080

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the demographics of the Group’s customer hase, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence
on credit risk, particularly in the current deteriorating economic circumstances. It is the Group’s policy that
all key partners who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The
main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant
exposures. The Group otherwise does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.

Impairment losses
The aging of the trade and other receivables at the reporting date that were not impaired was as follows:

Carrying amount

2012 2011

5000 $'000

Neither past due nor impaired 14,335 5,111
Past due 1 - 30 days 514 -
Past due 31 - 90 days 338 -
Past due 90+ days 151 -
Total 15,338 5111
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3. Financial risk management and ohjectives and policies (continued)

{c} Credit risk {(continued)
Impairment losses {continued)

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year
was as follows:

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Opening balance - -
Impairment loss recognised 63 -
Fair value adjustment due to acguisition 68 -
Amounts written off - -
Closing balance 131 -

At 30 June 2012 an impairment loss of $68,000 relates to trade receivables acquired as part of the
acquisition of Infochoice Limited (see note 4). The remainder of the impairment loss at 30 June 2012 relates
to several customers that have indicated that they are not expecting to be able to pay their outstanding
balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The Group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still
collectible, based on historic payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk, including
the underlying customers’ credit ratings, when available. Based on the Group’s monitoring of customer
credit risk, the Group believes that, except as indicated above, no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of trade receivables not past due.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of $20,012,000 at 30 june 2012 {2011: $17,499,000), which
represents its maximum credit exposuie on these assets. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank
and financial institution counterparties.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount to meet its financial
obligations. The Group also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables
together with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables through rolling forecasts. This excludes
the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the group’s performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the group’s internal policies and procedures include
specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolic. Identified concentrations of credit risks
are controlled and managed accordingly.
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3. Financial risk management and objectives and policies (continued)
{d) Liquidity risk {continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments
and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

30 june 2012

Carrying <Contractual 2 mths 2-12 1-2 2-5 More
amount  cash flows or mths vyears years than
$°000 $°000 less $°000 $'000 $°000 5
$ 000 years
$
000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 35,000 35,704 35,704 - - - -
Trade payables 21,246 21,246 21,246 - - - -
Total 56,246 56,950 56,950 - - - -

30 June 2011

Carrying Contractual 2 mths 2-12 1-2 2-5 More
amount  cash flows or mths years vyears than
$ °000 $°000 less $°000 $'000 $°000 5
S 000 years
$
000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - -
Trade payables 9,520 9,520 9,520 - - - -
Total 9,520 9,520 9,520 - - - -

The gross inflows/{outflaws) disclosed in the previous table represent the contractual undiscounted cash
flows relating to derivative financial liabilities held for risk management purposes and which are usually not
closed out prior to contractual maturity.

As disclosed in note 15, the Group has a secured loan which contains a debt covenant. A breach of this
covenant may require the Group to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the above table. The interest
payments on variable interest rate in the table above reflect current interest rate payable at the period end
and these amounts may change as market interest rates change. Except for these financial liabilities, it is
not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at
significantly different amounts.

On 20 August 2012, the repayment date of the $35 million of current borrowings with Goldman Sachs
Lending Partners LLC {Facility Agent) & Goldman Sachs & Partners Australia Capital Markets Limited
(Arranger) {“Goldman Sachs”) was extended by agreement under normal commercial terms to 17
December 2012,
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3. Financial risk management and objectives and policies {continued)

On 28 September 2012 and 5 October 2012, a total of $28.829 million was raised through the issue of
1,558,351 shares at $18.50 a share to institutional and sophisticated investors. These funds were used to
repay $20.729 million of the current borrowings with Goldman Sachs.

On 30 October 2012, a new 525 million facility was entered into with Credit Suisse AG under normal
commercial terms, with a repayment date of 20 December 2013. [t is the Directors intention to draw down
on this facility on 1 November 2012, subject to certain procedural conditions being met. On this date, it is
the Directors intention to then fully repay the remaining current borrowings of $14.271 million to Goldman

Sachs.

{e) Fair value risk

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement

of financial positions are as follows:

Fair values versus carrying amounts

Trading Other Total Fair

$'000 financial carrying value

liabilities amount $ 000

S 000 $ "000

Cash and cash equivalents 20,012 - 20,012 20,012

Trade and other receivables 15,338 - 15,338 15,338

Net present value of future trail commission 91,459 - 91,459 91,459

Total 126,809 - 126,809 126,809

Borrowings 35,000 - 35,000 35,000

Trade and other payables 21,246 - 21,246 21,246

Total 56,246 - 56,246 56,246
30 June 2011

Trading Other Total Fair

$°000 financial carrying value

liabilities amount $°000

$°000 $°000

Cash and cash equivalents 17,499 - 17,499 17,499

Trade and other receivables 5,111 - 5,111 5,111

Net present value of future trail commission 61,430 - 61,480 61,480

Total 84,090 - 84,090 84,090

Borrowings - - - “

Trade and other payables 9,520 - 9,520 9,520

Total 9,520 - 9,520 9,520
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3. Financial risk management and objectives and policies (continued)

{e) Fair value risk (continued)

The Group uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The methods

comprise:

Level 1 —the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 — the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly {derived from prices).

Level 3 - the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observahle

market data.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Year ended 30 June 2012

Valuation

Valuation technique -

Quated market technique - market non-market
price  observable inputs observable inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3} Total
$'000 $ '000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20,012 - - 20,012
Trade and other receivables - 15,338 - 15,338
Net present value of future trail commission - - 91,455 91,459
20,012 15,338 91,459 126,809
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 35,000 - 35,000
Trade and other payables - 21,246 - 21,246
- 56,246 - 56,246
Year ended 30 June 2011
Valuation  Valuation technique -
Quoted market technique - market non-market
price  observable inputs observable inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,499 - - 17,499
Trade and other receivables - 5,111 - 5111
Net present value of future trail commission - - 61,480 61,480
17,499 5,111 61,480 84,090
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - - -
Trade and other payables - 9,520 - 9,520
- 9,520 - 9,520
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3. Financial risk management and objectives and policies (continued)

For financial instruments not quoted in active markets, the Group used valuation techniques such as
present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and
other relevant models used by market participants. These valuation techniques use both observable and
unohservabie market inputs.

{e) Fair value risk {continued}

2012 2011
$ '000 $'000

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value movements
Opening Balance 61,480 38,250
New Receivable 44,731 29,893
Lapsed Receivable (5,973) {2,551)
Cash Receipts (24,503) {14,439)
Gains/(Losses) from movement in discount rate 7,441 4,310
Gains/(Losses} from movement in other fair value assumptions 8,783 6,017
Closing Balance 91,459 61,480

The Group uses the discounted cash flow method in determining the fair value of the unlisted asset. The
potential effect of using reasonable possible alternative assumptions based on a change in combined
relevant inputs by 1% would have the effect of reducing the fair value by to $7,774,000 (2011: $5,050,000)
should the discount rate increase, premium price decrease or termination rates increase, or increase the
fair value by $8,471,000 {2011: 55,590,160} should the opposite apply. Individually, the effects of these
inputs would not individually give rise to any additional amount greater than those stated.

if the assumption that there is a potential impact of future regulatory or federal government policy change
be removed, the valuation would increase by $784,000 {$2011: $586,334).

(f) Capital Management

The Board’s paolicy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain operations and future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary
shares and retained earnings. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and seeks to maintain a
balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the

advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.
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4. Acquisitions of subsidiary

On 14 November 2011 the Group obtained control of Infochoice Limited, an online comparison company
dealing in predominantly financial products.

Taking control of Infochoice Limited will enable the Group to add additional comparison verticals to its

existing businesses and also provide the Group with an increased share through access to the acquiree’s
customer base.

The profit from acquisition to 30 June 2012 in Infochoice Limited contributed revenue of $3,400,000 and
loss before tax of $779,000 to the Group's result. H the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2011,
management estimates that contributed revenue would have been §5,275,000 and the contributed loss for
the period would have $557,000. In determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair
value adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2011,

The Group paid cash consideration of $33.538 million for the purchase of Infochoice Limited, and the
recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

$'000

Cash 2,190
Trade debtors 1,054
Property, plant & equipment -
Brand name 6,450
Computer software 940
Customer contracts 806
Other assets 67
Deferred taxes (216)
Trade and other payables {568)
Unearned revenue (332)
Provisions (88)
Net identifiable assets 10,303

The foliowing fair values have been determined by management:

»

For fair value of intangible assets in relation to customer lists refer to note 12(a)

For fair value of brand names refer to note 12(a)

For fair value of computer software refer to note 12(a)

*

The fair value of Property, plant and equipment has been determined to be nil at acquisition.

The trade receivables comprise of gross contractual amounts due of $1,122,000, of which $68,000 was
expected to be uncollectible at the acquisition date.
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4., Acquisition of subsidiary {continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill was recognised as a result of the acquisition as follows:

5'000
Total consideration transferred 33,538
less Fair value of identifiable assets 10,303
Total 23,235
Cash flow on acquisition
Goodwill was recognised as a result of the acquisition as follows:
$'000
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 2,190
Cash paid (33,538)
Net cash flow on acquisition (31,348)

Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition related costs of $1,260,000 relating to external legal fees and due diligence
costs, which were expensed in the statement of comprehensive income.
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2012 2011
$'000 $'000
5. Revenues and expenses
a) Revenue
Marketing fees, net of clawback 52,602 34,722
Present value trail commissions 54,625 37,639
Click revenue 2,034 -
Other business revenue 2,667 81
Total sales revenue 111,928 72,442
b} Employee entitlement expenses
Cost of sales and administrative expenses include the following personnel expenses:
Employee benefits 36,498 23,628
Share based payments expense 557 658
Total employee benefits expenses 37,055 24,286
c} Research and development costs
Amortisation of previously capitalised development costs 2,069 617
d) Depreciation expense
Property, plant & equipment 1,985 2,568

The depreciation amounts shown in 2011 include accelerated depreciation for fixed assets being disposed
of prior to the premises relocation, which occurred in November 2011.

e} Lease expenditure

Operating lease expenditure 1,560 543

f) Relocation Costs
Relocation Costs (813) 1,592

Relocation costs relate to the expenditure incurred as a result of the planned move to the new premises at
Bay Road, Cheltenham. The costs relate to legal, property management and property fees.

Make good and onerous contract for rental costs incurred in the current building are also included, which
have been reversed to the extent they are no longer required during the current financial period.

g) Acquisition costs
Acquisition Costs 1,260 217

Acquisition costs relate to the legal and due diligence costs in association with the Infochoice Limited
acquisition. Refer 1o note 4 for further information on the Infochoice Limited acquisition.
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2012 2011
$'000 5'000
5. Revenues and expenses (continued)
h) Interest expense
Interest expense 1,770 -
Interest expense relates to the interest charged on the horrowings facility.
] Doubtful debts expense
Doubtful debt expense 63 -
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2012 2011

$'000 $'000
6. Income tax
Current income tax
Current income tax henefit/{charge) 2,054 2,216
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years {298) 286
Deferred income tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (7,890) (6,778)
Adjustments in respect of deferred income tax of previous years (70} (92}
Income tax reported in income statement {6,204) (4,368}

A reconciliation of income tax henefit/{expense) applicable to account profit before income tax at the statutory income
tax rate is as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 19,133 15,025
Statutory income tax rate of 30% (5,740) {4,508}
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (298) 286
Adjustments in respect of deferred income tax of previous years (70 (92)
Share based payments (167) {197)
Entertainment {71) {27)
Research and development concessional deduction 272 170
Other (130} -

Total income tax expense (6,204} (4,368)

Deferred tax assets relate to the following:

Deferred tax assets from temporary differences on:

Trade and other payables 768 221
Provisions 2,166 1,082
Carried forward losses 8,450 6,695
Other 140 64
Total deferred tax assets 11,524 8,062

Deferred tax liabilities from temporary differences on:

Present value of trail commission (27,438) (18,444)
Accrued Interest {7) (12)
Development costs (1,723) (927}
Other (98) -
Total deferred tax liabilities (29,2686) {19,383)
Net deferred tax liabilities (17,742) {11,321)
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6. Income tax (continued)

Tax consolidation

The iSelect Group formed an income tax consolidated group as at 30 April 2007. iSelect Limited continue to
act as the head Company of this Group. in addition on the 100% acquisition of Infochoice Limited, it became
part of the tax consolidated group.

Members of the Group entered into a tax sharing agreement at that time that provided for the allocation of
income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No
amounts are expected to be recognised in the financial statements in respect of this agreement on the basis
that the probability of default is remote.

The head entity and the controlled entities in the likely tax consolidated group continue to account for their
own current and deferred tax balances.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets of $2.8 million (gross tax loss of $9.3 million} in respect of losses acquired as part of the
infochoice Limited acquisition have not been recognised as at 30 June 2012.
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2012 2011
$'000 $'000

7. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand 10,870 6,999
Term deposits 9,142 10,500
Total cash and cash equivalents 20,012 17,499

Cash at bank and on hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Short-term depasits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Reconciliation of statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of net profit after tax to net cash flows from operations

Net profit after tax 12,929 10,657
Adjustments for non-cash income and expense items:
Depreciation/amortisation 4,054 3,185
Share options expensed 557 658
Interest income classified as investing cash flow (875) (841)
Interest expense classified as financing cash flow 1,425 -
Increase/decrease in assets and liabilities
Trade and other receivables {9,173) (1,148)
Net present value of future trail commission (29,979) (23,230)
Other assets (40) (707)
Trade and other payables 11,158 2,299
Deferred taxes 6,204 4,367
Provisions 3,396 1,501
Other liabilities (18) -
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities {362) (3,259}
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2012 2011
$'000 $'000
8. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables, third parties 10,973 5,111
Provision for doubtful debts {131} -
Other receivables 4,496 -
Total trade and other receivables 15,338 5,111
9. Net present value of future trail commission
Net present value of future trail commission 91,459 61,480
Total net present value of future trail commission 91,459 61,480
Current
Net present value of future trail commission 26,534 20,239
26,534 20,239
Non-Current
Net present value of future trail commission 64,925 41,241
Total 64,925 41,241
10. Other assets
Prepayments 1,124 716
Other Assets 36 337
Total other assets 1,160 1,053
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11. Property, plant and equipment

Furniture
fixtures
Leasehold Office/Computer Motor Computer and
Improvements equipment  vehicles  software fittings Total
Year Ended 30 June 2012 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
At 1 July 2011
Net of accumulated depreciation i 909 i 1,016 “ 1,969
Acquired through acquisition - - - 940 - 940
Additions 6,625 1,438 a5 214 94 8,456
Disposals - - - - - -
Transfers - - - - - -
Depreciation for the period {848} {510} {2} (614) (11}  (1,985)
At 30 June 2012
5,777 1,837 a3 1,556 127 9,380
Net of accumulated depreciation
At1lJuly 2011
Cost value 1,768 2,302 - 1,992 916 6,979
Accumulated depreciation {1,769) {1,393) - (976) {872) {5,010}
Net carrying amount - 909 - 1,016 44 1,969
At 30 June 2012
Cost value 8,394 3,740 85 3,146 1,010 16,375
Accumulated depreciation (2,617) {(1,903) 2 {1,530) (383) (6,995)
Net carrying amount 5,717 1,837 83 1,556 127 9,380
Year Ended 30 June 2011
At 1 july 2010
Net of accumulated depreciation 1,075 716 - 617 524 2,932
Additions 87 589 - 722 164 1,562
Transfers - - - 43 - 43
Depreciation for the period (1,162) (396} - (366} (644) (2,568)
At 30 June 2011
Net of accumulated depreciation - 209 - 1,016 44 1,969
At 1July 2010
Cost value 1,682 1,713 - 1,227 752 5,374
Accumulated depreciation (607) (997) - {610) (228) {2,442)
Net carrying amount 1,075 716 - 617 524 2,932
At 30 June 2011
Costvalue 1,769 2,302 - 1,992 916 6,979
Accumulated depreciation (1,769} (1,393) - {976) (872) {5,010}
Net carrying amount - 909 - 1,016 44 1,969
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12. Non - current assets — Intangible assets

Trade- Goodwill Brand  Customer
Devel- marks & Name  Contracts
opment Domain Computer
Costs Names Software Total

S ‘000 $ 000 $ ‘000 S ‘000 S ‘000 S‘000  $°000
Year Ended 30 June 2012
At 1 luly 2011
Net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment 3,477 201 - - - - 3,678
Additions 4,948 - - 4,948
Acguired through acquisition - - - 23,235 6,450 806 30,491
Amortisation (1,263) - - - - {806) (2,069)
At 30 June 2012
Net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment 7,162 201 - 23,235 6,450 - 37,048
At 20 June 2012
Cost {gross carrying amount) 10,850 201 - 23,235 6,450 806 41,582
accumulated amortisation and
impairment (3,728) - - - - (806) (4,534}
Net carrying amount 7,162 201 - 23,235 6,450 - 37,048
Year Ended 30 June 2011
At 1 july 2010
Net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment 1,649 201 13 - - - 1,893
Additions 2,445 - - - - - 2,445
Disposals - - (43) - - - (43)
Amoaortisation (627) - - (617)
At 30 June 2011
Net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment 3,477 201 - - - - 3,678
At 30 June 2011
Cost [gross carrying amount) 5,942 201 - - - - 6,143
.accur‘nulated amortisation and (2,465) ) ) (2,465)
impairment - -
Net carrying amount 3,477 201 - - - - 3,678
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12. Non - current assets — Intangible assets {continued)

(a) Description of intangible assets

(i} Development costs

Development costs relate to the development of the Group’s varicus websites and customer conversion
systems and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. This
intangible asset has been assessed as having a finite life and is amortised using the straight line method
over a period of between two to four years. The amortisation has been recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in amortisation. If an impairment indication arises, the recoverable amount is
estimated and an impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount is lower than the
carrying amount.

(i} Trademark and domain names

Trademark and domain names are carried at cost and are not amortised. These intangible assets have been
determined to have infinite useful lives. These assets were tested for impairment as at 30 June 2012, on a
‘value-in-use’ basis.

(iii) Goodwill
Goodwill relates to the acquisition of Infochoice Limited; refer to note 4 for further information on
recognition and measurement criterion.

{iv) Brand Name

The brand name acquired as part of the Infochoice Limited acquisition were initially recognised at fair value.
This intangible asset has been determined to have infinite useful life. These assets were tested for
impairment as at 30 June 2012, refer to note 12 (b).

{v} Customer Contracts

The customer contract asset acquired as part of the Infochoice Limited acquisition is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. This intangible asset has been assessed as
having a finite life and is amortised using the straight line method over the remaining period of the contract
terms. The amortisation has been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in amortisation.
This asset is fully written down as at 30 June 2012.

(b) Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives

Goodwill acquired through the Infochoeice Limited acquisition has been allocated to the cash generating
units (“CGU"s) for impairment testing as follows:

$ 000

Health 4,634
Home Loans 10,088
Money 6,801
Other 1,712
23,235

Brand names acquired through the Infochoice Limited acquisition have an indefinite useful life and are
allocated to a Group level.

The Group performed its annual impairment test as at 30 June 2012. The recoverable amount of CGUs has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using a combination of cash flow projections from
2013 financial budgets approved by the Board, 2014-2015 financial forecasts approved by senior
management, and a growth rate increment for subsequent years.

42




'

ISELECT LIMITED — FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012

12. Non - current assets — Intangible assets (continued}

A pre-tax discount rate is applied to the cash flow projections.

As a result of this analysis, no impairment was identified for the CGUs for which goodwilt or brand names
are allocated.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculation

Discount rates

Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances
of the Group and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC).
The WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return
on investment by the Group’s investors. The cost of debt is based an the interest bearing borrowings the
Group is obliged to service. Segment-specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The
beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available marked data.

As a result, the pre-tax discount rate applied is 15.7%.

Growth rate estimates

For each CGU, five years of cash flows have been included in the discounted cash flow models. These are
based on projections from 2013 financial budgets, 2014-2015 financial forecasts, and a growth rates ranging
from 2% to 5% for all CGU's other than Home Loans, which has a 200% growth rate applied for 2016, and
5% for 2017. A long term growth rate into perpetuity has been determined for 2018 onward and is the
lower of nominal growth rate applicable to the individual CGU, or 2.9%. A static 5% growth rate has been
applied to general corporate overhead.

Market share assumptions

These assumptions are important because management assesses how the unit’s position, relative to its
competitors, might change over the budget period. Management expects the Group’s share of its
respective markets to grow over the budget period.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of ‘value-in-use’ of the CGUs other than the Home Loans CGU, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
value of the units to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

For the Home Loans unit, the estimated recoverable amount is $1,992,000 greater than its carrying value
and, consequently, any adverse change in a key assumption would result in an impairment loss. The
implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:

Growth rate assumptions — Management recognises that the Home Loans CGU is a new entrant to the
market and the possibility of the speed of its growth may have a significant impact on growth rate
assumptions applied. To have an adverse impact on the forecasts included in the budget, a reduction to
168% in the EBITDA growth rate for 2016 would result in an impairment.

Discount rate assumptions —To have an adverse impact on the forecasts included in the budget, an increase
of the pre-tax discount rate to 17.2% would result in an impairment of the Home Loans CGU.
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2012 2011
$'000 $'000

13. Trade and other payables
Trade payables 4,684 833
Other payables 16,562 8,687
Total trade and other payables 21,246 9,520

Trade payable and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.

14. Provisions

Current Provisions

Annual Leave 1,581 1,011
Long Service Leave 224 153
Lease incentive 319 48
Clawback 1,856 1,162
Other 252 1,049
Total 4,232 3,423

Non-Current Provisions

Long Service Leave 304 183
Lease incentive 2,554 -
Total 2,858 183

{a) Nature and timing of provisions

(i} Clawback provision

The Group has recognised a provision for expected clawback of marketing fees receivable from health, life and general
funds due to early termination of policies by new members. This is based on historic and average industry rates of
attrition. Clawback of fees is incurred within two to twelve months of the sale of the relevant policies.

{ii) Provision for lease incentive
Relates to the receipt of lease incentive payments in relation to the Group’s operating premises. This revenue has
heen deferred and is being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the life of the lease.

(iii} Other

Other provisions included the net provision for make good and onerous contracts recognised in the previous financial
year in relation to the previous office lease of 973 Nepean Highway, Moorabbin. During the financial year,
management negotiated a subletting arrangement and a release from certain make good requirements. To the extent
such provisions were not required, they were reversed in the current financial year.

Also included in other provisions are specific provisions in relation to allowances for make good transactions.
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14. Provisions {continued)

{b) Movement in provisions

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than provisions relating to employee benefits, are

set out below:

Clawback Lease Incentive Other

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

$ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
As at beginning of the period 1,162 775 48 334 1,049 78
Arising during the Year 5,179 3,721 3,192 - 252 1,045
Utitised (4,485) (3,334} {367) {286) (235) (78}
Unused amounts reversed - - - - (814) -
At end of the period 1,856 1,162 2,873 43 252 1,049

15. Borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
which are measured at amortised cost. For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate, foreign

currency and liquidity risk, see note 3.

Terms and debt repayment schedules

2012 2011
Nominated Carrying Face Carrying
Currency interest Year of  Face value amount value amount
rate maturity $ ‘000 5 ‘000 $ ‘000 5 ‘000
Borrowings AUD 7.58% 2012 35,000 35,000 - -
Total interest-bearing liabilities 35,000 35,000 - -

On 20 August 2012, the repayment date of the 535 million of current borrowings with Goldman Sachs Lending Partners
LLC {Facility Agent) & Goldman Sachs & Partners Australia Capital Markets Limited (Arranger) (“Goldman Sachs”)} was
extended by agreement under normal commercial terms to 17 December 2012.

On 28 September 2012 and 5 October 2012, a total of $28.829 million was raised through the issue of 1,558,351 shares
at $18.50 a share to institutional and sophisticated investors. These funds were used to repay $20.729 million of the

current borrowings with Geldman Sachs.

On 30 October 2012, a new $25 million facility was entered into with Credit Suisse AG under normal commercial terms,
with a repayment date of 20 December 2013. [t is the Directors intention to draw down on this facility on 1 November
2012, subject to certain procedural conditions being met. On this date, it is the Directors intention to then fully repay
the remaining current borrowings of $14.271 million to Goldman Sachs.
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16. Issued capital

CONSOLIDATED
2012 2011
$ $
Issued and paid up capital 49,759,000 36,582,000
Ordinary shares fully paid (number} 18,808,949 14,692,314

Share capital increased during the year as a result of the issue of ordinary shares to option holders exercising 4,166,073
share options (2011: 832,000). There were no capital raisings during the year.

The total number of share options outstanding at 30 June 2012 is 2,434,135 (2011: 6,793,731). Refer to note 22(b} for
the reconciliation of movements in share options during the year.

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the Group, to
participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on
shares held.

Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Group.

Effective 1 July 1998, the Corporations legislation in place abolished the concepts of authorised capital and par value
shares. Accordingly, the Group does not have authorised capital no par value in respect of its issued shares.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Operating lease commitments

During the previous financial year the Group entered inte a commercial lease for the current premises which had an
initial life of 10 years with the option to renew at the end of the contract period.

During 2011 the Group also entered into several hire purchase motor vehicle leases with a life of 3 years.

There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering inte these leases.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
2012 2011
$'000 5000
Operating Lease Commitments
Minimum lease payments
Not later than one year 2,181 1,963
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 9,252 8,542
More than 5 years 10,161 12,461
Total operating lease commitments 21,594 22,966
Operating lease expenses recognised as an expense during the
period: 1,560 543

(b) Contingencies

On 24 October 2011, iSelect Life Pty Ltd reported to the Australian Securities & Investments Commission a breach in
relation to its Australian Financial Services Licence relating to life insurance policies sold between April 2009 and March
2011. As a result of this breach, an internal review of all life insurance policies sold during that period is being
undertaken. The amount (if any) of any liability cannot be reliably determined at this time, accordingly no amounts
have been recorded in the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012, Potential liabilities for the Group,
should any obligation be identified, are expected to be coverad by insurance maintained by the Group.

In March 2012, Bupa Australia Pty Ltd issued legal proceedings against iSelect in the Federal Court, which are due to be
heard at trial in 2013. In October 2012, Bupa Australia joined two iSelect Directors, Damien Waller and Matthew
MecCann to the proceedings. iSelect intends to vigorously defend the allegations which relate to alleged misleading and
deceptive advertising. iSelect has also brought its own cross claim against Bupa Australia Pty Ltd and its Managing
Director for misleading and deceptive conduct. Legal expenses incurred in relation to these proceedings have been
expensed as incurred. Given the cutcome of the proceedings are unknown, no further provisions have been made.
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18. Related party disclosure

{a} Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of iSelect Limited and the subsidiaries listed in
the following table:

Name mi‘;‘r’:;’rz:;n 2012 2011
iSelect Health Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
iSelect Life Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
iSelect General Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
iSelect Media Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
iSelect Mortgages Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
Maobileselect Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
infochoice Pty Ltd Australia 100% -
iSelect Services Pty Lid Australia 100% -
Tyrian Pty Ltd Australia 100% -

{b) Ultimate parent

iSelect Limited is the ultimate Australian parent entity of the Group.

{c) Key management personne!

Details relating to key management personnel, including remuneration paid, are included in note 21.
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18. Related party disclosure {continued)
{d) Transactions with related parties
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with related parties for the

relevant financial year (for information regarding outstanding balances on related party trade receivables and payables
at year end, refer to notes 8 and 13 respectively}:

Purchases Other
Sales to from transactions Balances: at
related related with related repo:;r;z
parties parties parties
Related Party $ $ $ S
Consolidated
Shareholder related entities
Ninemsn - Advertising Services
2012 - 57,362 - 57,362
2011 - 174,504 85,000 253,504
Director related entities
Martin Dalgleish - Consultancy fees
2012 - 28,779 - 28,779
2011 - 20,000 - 20,000

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Sales to and purchases from related parties are made in arm's length transactions both at normal market prices and on
normal commercial terms.

QOutstanding balances at period-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

No guarantees were provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.
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19. Events after the balance sheet date

On 20 August 2012, the repayment date of the $35 million of current borrowings with Goldman Sachs Lending Partners
LLC (Facility Agent) & Goldman Sachs & Partners Australia Capital Markets Limited {(Arranger) (“Goldman Sachs”) was
extended by agreement under normal commercial terms to 17 December 2012.

On 28 September 2012 and 5 October 2012, a total of 528.829 million was raised through the issue of 1,558,351 shares
at $18.50 a share to institutional and sophisticated investors. These funds were used to repay $20.729 million of the
current borrowings with Goldman Sachs.

On 30 October 2012, a new $25 million facility was entered into with Credit Suisse AG under normal commercial terms,
with a repayment date of 20 December 2013. it is the Directors intention to draw down on this facility on 1 November
2012, subject to certain procedural conditions being met. On this date, it is the Directors intention to then fully repay
the remaining current borrowings of $14.271 million to Goldman Sachs.

Other than the matters discussed above, in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of Group, to
affect significantly the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group, in
future financial years.

20. Auditor’s remuneration

The following total remuneration was received, or is due and receivable, by the auditor of the Group in respect of:

CONSOLIDATED

2012 2011
$ $

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young

Australia for:
Audit of the financial statements 174,000 149,300
Other Services:

- tax complhance 44,700 47,800
- assurance related 33,500 25,650
- due diligence 65,000 94,615
- capital and fund raising 75,000 58,674
- regulatory compliance 36,000 26,400
Total 432,200 402,439
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21. Director and executive disclostire

(a) Details of Key Management Personnel

Directors
Damien Waller

Matthew McCann

Shaun Bonett
Leslie Webb
Michael McLeod
Patrick O'Sullivan
Gregory Camm
Martin Dalgleish

Executives
David Chalmers
Trevor Jeffords

Roger McBride
Elise Morris
Chris Billing
Joanna Thomas
Chris Brant
Mark Blackburn
Gerald Brown
David May

Alla Keogh

Managing Director/ Executive Chairman (elected to Executive Chairman on 16 March
2012)

Chief Executive Officer — appointed 7 February 2012 (Company Secretary from 22
September 2010 to 7 February 2012)

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director — appointed 20 August 2012

Non-Executive Chairman — ceased 16 March 2012

Chief Financial Officer — appointed 23 August 2012

General Counsel and Company Secretary — appointed

to Company Secretary 7 February 2012

Chief Marketing Director — appointed 20 August 2012

Human Resources Director — appointed 2 February 2012

Customer Strategy and initiatives Director

Sales and Operations Director — appointed 3 May 2012

Chief Financial Officer — appointed 24 October 2011 - ceased 23 August 2012
Group Chief Financial Officer — appointed 1 October 2010 ~ ceased 4 October 2011
Chief Executive Officer insurance — ceased 14 May 2012

Chief Marketing Officer — ceased 31 July 2012

Human Resources Director - ceased 19 September 2011

(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Aggregated compensation of Directors and key management personnel was as follows:

Short-term Post- Termination Share Other
Consolidated employee employment . based long-term Total
. - benefits .
benefits benefits payment benefits
$ $ $ $ $ $
2012
Total Compensation 3,202,058 215,424 166,412 270,168 - 3,854,062
2011
Total Compensation 2,610,643 215,804 - 369,046 - 3,195,493

All equity transactions with key management personnel other than those arising from the exercise of remuneration
options have been entered into under terms and conditions no more favourable than those the Group would have
adopted if dealing at arm’s length.
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Director and executive disclosure (continued}

{c) Option holdings of Key Management Personnel Total Options
Vested at 30 lune 2012
Balance at
Balance at Granted as Options NetChange  end of period Not
30 Jupe 2012 1July 2011 Remuneration Exercised Other # 30 June 2012 Total Exercisable Exercisable
Directors
Damien Waller 3,022,074 - (2,572,074} - 450,000 359,803 - 359,803
Matthew McCann 240,000 - - - 240,000 209,934 90,000 119,934
Martin Daigleish~~~ 180,000 34,975 - - 214,975 183,284 180,000 3,284
Shaun Bonett 30,000 - {30,000} - - - - -
Leslie Webb 30,000 - {30,000} - - - - -
Michael McLecd - . - - - - - -
Patrick O'Sullivan - - - - - - - -
Executives
David Chalmers # - - - - - - - -
Chris Brant ## - - - - - - - -
Mark Blackburn 100,000 - - {60,000) 40,000 40,000 - 40,000
Gerald Brown 243,750 - (93,750} {25,000} 125,000 125,000 - 125,000
Trevor Jeffords *** 50,000 - - - 50,000 39,978 - 39,978
Roger McBride**** 60,000 - - - 60,000 60,000 - 60,000
David May rana 100,000 - - {40,000} 60,000 60,000 - 60,000
Elise Marris ### - - - - - - - R
Alla Keogh~ 100,000 - - (53,333) 46,667 46,667 - 46,667
Chrls Billing 120,000 - - - 120,000 97,016 - 97,016
Joanna Thomas #HifiHt 70,000 - - - 70,000 57,037 - 57,037
Total 4,345,824 34,975 (2,725,824) {178,333) 1,476,642 1,278,719 270,000 1,008,719
Total Options
Vested at 30 June 2011
Balance at
Balance at 1 Granted as Optlons Net Change  end of period Not
30 June 2011 July 2010 Remuneration Exercised Other # 30 june 2011 Total Exercisable Exergisable
Directors
Damien Waller 2,685,276 450,000 (113,202) - 3,022,074 2,751,483 2,572,074 179,409
Martin Dalgleish 180,000 - - - 180,000 134,836 134,836 -
Shaun Bonett 139,147 - (109,147) - 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Lestie Webb 30,000 - - - 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Nicholas Gray? - - - - - - - -
Joanne PollardAAh - - - - - - - -
Michael McLeod - - - - - - - -
Patrick O'Sullivan * - - - - - - - -
Executives
Mark Blackburn** - 100,000 - - 100,000 39,869 - 39,869
Matthew McCann 90,000 150,000 - - 240,000 149,803 90,000 59,803
Gerald Brown 93,750 150,000 - - 243,750 153,553 93,750 59,803
Paul Cullinanss 195,000 - (20,000) - 105,000 74,918 15,000 59,918
David May - 160,000 - - 100,000 24,691 - 24,691
Alla Keogh™ - 160,000 - - 100,000 35,869 - 39,869
Chris Billing 20,000 100,000 - - 120,000 50,243 - 50,243
Total 3,433,173 1,150,000 (312,349) - 4,270,824 3,479,265 2,965,660 513,605

fiad Martin Dalgleish ceased 16 March 2012

# David Chalmers appointed 23 August 2012

H Chris Brant appointed 24 October 2011, ceased 23 August 2012

A Nicholas Gray ceased 22 September 2010

ARA Joanne Pollard ceased 25 May 2011

* Patrick O'Sullivan appointed 22 September 2010

*x Mark Blackburn appointed 1 October 2010, ceased 4 October 2011

*EE Trevor Jeffords appointed 7 February 2012

AA
EETTS

ARAA

HHH

H#iti
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{d) Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel

Balance at 30 lune

Granted as

On Exercise of

Other changes during

30 june 2012 2011 Remuneration Optlons the year Balance 30 June 12
Directors
Damien Waller 1,160,795 - 2,572,074 {285,714} 3,447,155
Matthew McCann 7,035 - - - 7,035
Martin Dalgleish - - - - -
Shaun Bonett - - 30,000 - 30,000
Leslie Webb 585,000 - 30,000 - 615,000
Michael Mcleod 14,935 - - - 14,935
Patrick O'Sullivan * - - - - -
Executives
David Chalmers # - - - - N
Chris Brant ## - - - - -
Mark Blackburn 32,258 - - - 32,258
Gerald Brown 7,035 - 93,750 - 100,785
Trevar Jeffords *** - - - - -
Roger McBride**** - - - - -
David May Anan - - - . ~
Elise Morris ### - - - - -
Alla Keogh™ - - - - -
Chris Billing - - - 2,000 2,000
Joanna Thomas ##4# - - - - -
Total 1,807,058 - 2,725,824 (283,714} 4,249,168
Balance at 01 luly Granted as On Exercise of Other changes during
30 June 2011 2010 Remuneration Optians the year Balance 30 June 11
Directors
Damien Waller 1,487,234 - 113,202 {439,641} 1,160,795
Martin Dalgleish - - - - -
Shaun Bonett 389,017 - 105,147 (498,164} -
Leslie Webh 647,250 - - 62,250} 585,000
Nicholas Gray»r - - - - -
Joanne Pollardhnr - - - - -
Michael McLeod - - - 14,935 14,935
Patrick O'Sullivan * - - - - -
Executives
Mark Blackburn** - ~ - 32,258 32,258
Matthew McCann 7,035 - - - 7,035
Gerald Brown 7,035 - - - 7,035
Paul Cullinanas 41,457 - 90,000 {51,497} 80,000
David May - - - - -
Alla Keogh™ - - - - -
Chris Billing - - - - -
Total 2,579,068 - 312,349 (1,004,358} 1,887,058
o Martin Dalgleish ceased 16 March 2012 An Paul Cullinan ceased 22 January 2011
# David Chalmers appointed 23 August 2012 ¥**%  Roger McBride appointed 20 August 2012
## Chris Brant appointed 24 October 2011, ceased 23 August 2012 Aann - David May ceased 31 July 2012
A Nicholas Gray ceased 22 Septernber 2010 i Elise Morris appointed 2 February 2012
AAA Joanne Pollard ceased 25 May 2011 ~ Alla Keogh ceased 19 September 2011
* Patrick O'Sullivan appointed 22 September 2010 i Joanna Thomas appointed 3 May 2012
** Mark Blackburn appointed 1 October 2010, ceased 4 QOctober 2011
i Trevor leffords appointed 7 February 2012
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22. Share based payment plans

(a) Recognised share based payment expenses

The expense recognised for employee services received during the period is shown in the table below:

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Expense arising from equity settled share based payment transactions 557 658

The share-based payment plans are described below. There have been no cancellations or modifications to any of the
plans in during the period. On the reorganisation of the corporate group on 27 April 2007, all plans were novated from
iSelect Health Pty Ltd (formerly iSelect Pty Ltd) to the parent Company iSelect Limited.

(b) Types of share based payment plans
Employee Share Option Plan {ESOP)
ESOP (Post 1 July 2010)

Under the iSelect ESCP, share options may be granted to Company Directors, Company Secretary, Senior Executives
and employees. The ESOP is designed to align pariicipant’s interests with those of shareholders hy increasing the value
of the Group’s shares. Under the ESOP, the exercise price of the options is set at or above the market price of the
shares on the date of grant. Typical vesting period for options granted is the equivalent of 2 and half years. The term of
the options is typically 3 years. For all participants, in the event of change of control or departure from iSelect after the
required service period, the issued options will be pro-rated to determine the applicable qualifying options based on
service term. In addition, all shares have an attached Groups performance condition hurdle which needs to be
achieved in order for options to be exercisable. Specific conditions exist in relation to a takeover where more than 90%
of the share capital is acquired by another entity.

When a participant ceases employment pricr to the service period of their share options, the non vested share options
are pro-rated based on the propertion of the service period completed. The vested options will be also be forfeited in
circumstances where the participant has breached their contract of employment, All ESOP opticns are forfeited on the
insclvency of the iSelect Limited. There are no cash settlement alternatives.

ESOP (Pre 1 July 2010)

Under the iSelect ESCP, share options are granted to Company Directors, secrefary and senior execufives, The ESOP is
designed to align participant interests with those of shareholders by increasing the value of the Group’s shares. Under
the ESOP, the exercise price of the aptions is set at or above the market price of the shares on the date of grant. For all
participants, excluding Company Directors and secretary, 50% of deemed options granted will vest over the prescribed
vesting period subject to CEO performance assessment. Typical vesting period for options granted varies from three to
four years. The term of the options is typically five years. For all participants, excluding Company Directors and
secretary, vested options can be exercised on an Initial Public Offering (IPO} event or trade sale event or within six
months prior to their expiry or at the discretion of the board. For all participants, 75% of any unvested options
immediately vest on an IPO or trade sale event.

When a participant ceases employment prior to the vesting of their share options, the non vested share options are
forfeited. The vested options will be also be forfeited in circumstances where the participant has breached their
contract of employment. All ESOP options are forfeited on the insolvency of the iSelect Limited or iSelect Health Pty
Ltd. There are no cash settlement alternatives.
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22, Share based payment plans {continued}

(b} Types of share based payment plans {continued)

CEO Performance Plan

The CEO Performance Plan (CEO Plan} was a contract between the Group and the then Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
Damien Waller for the grant of share options in iSelect Ltd. The share options under the CEOQ Plan were granted on 20
December 2005 by iSelect Health Pty Ltd and novated to the Group on 27 April 2007. The CEO Plan was designed to
align the CEQ's interests with those of shareholders by increasing the value of the Group. if all vesting conditions were
met and the Group’s valuation was equal to or exceeded $265m then alf options could be exercised. The share options
had an exercise price of $2.22 and fully vested to 30 June 2008,

Terms of an agreement with ninemsn Pty Ltd relating to the purchase of shares in the Group on 31 March 2006
granted ninemsn Pty Ltd share options in the Group. The exercise price of the options was $4.25. The number of
exercisable options was calculated, so that ninemsn Pty Ltd had the same equity interest in the Group.

During the financial year all CEQ perfoermance plan and ninemsn Pty Ltd options were exercised and the plans ceased.

(c) Summaries of options granted under ESOP, CEQ Plan and ninemsn Pty Ltd agreements

The following table illustrates the number (No.) and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in,
share options during the year:

2012 2011

2012 No. WAEP 2011 No. WAEP

Outstanding at the beginning of the period 6,793,731 9.78 5,626,531 4.07
Granted during the period 34,975 23.65 2,000,000 22.50
Options in relation to CEO Plan - - - -
Forfeited during the period {(228,498) 22.36 - -
Exercised during the period (4,166,073) 3.36 (832,800} 1.78
QOutstanding at the end of the period 2,434,135 19.79 6,793,731 9.78
Exercisable at the end of the year 703,326 15.03 4,408,731 3.78

The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2012 is represented by:

180,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $7.50 to $9.50 (WAEP of $8.50), exercisable
upon meeting the ESOP conditions;

347,500 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price ranging from $10.00 to $12.50 (WAEP of $11.45),
exercisable upon meeting the ESOP conditions;

2,658 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $15.35, exercisable upon meeting the ESOP
conditions.

90,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $20.00, exercisable upon meeting the ESOP
conditions.

1,779,002 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $22.50, exercisable upon meeting the ESOP
conditions.

34,975 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $23.65, exercisable upon meeting the ESOP
conditions.
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22, Share based payment plans {continued)

(d)} Weighted average remaining contractual life

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 30 June 2012 is 1.17 years.
{e) Range of exercise price

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the period was $2.22 to $23.65.

As the range of exercise prices is wide, refer to section {c) above for further information in assessing the number and
timing of additional shares that may be issued and the cash that may be received upon exercise of those options.

(f) Weighted average fair value

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $0.93 (2011: $0.72).

{g) Option pricing model: ESOP, CEO Plan and ninemsn Pty Ltd agreements

The fair value of the equity settled share options granted under the ESOP, CEQ Plan and ninemsn Pty Ltd agreements is
estimated as at the date of grant using a Binomial Model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the

opticns were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the models used for the period ended 30 June 2012:

ESOP

ESOP Post 1 July ESOP
Post Feb 2010 —Feb Pre 1 luly CEQ
2012 2012 2010 PLAN*

Dividend Yield (%)

YearsO0to 3 - - - -
Years4to5 - - 1.00 1.00
Years 6to7 - - 1.50 1.50
Years 8 plus - - 2.00 2.00
Expected Volatility {%6) 23.5 42.00 40.00 40.00
Expected life of Options {years) 2.8 3 4.98 5.97
Option Exercise price (WAEP) ($) 23.65 22.50 6.33 2.74
Weighted average share price at measurement date ($) 16.50 15.50 3.80 2.44

* inclusive of ninemsn Pty Ltd agreement
The expected volatility was determined by considering volatility for similar sized and industry listed companies. The

expected volatility therefore reflects the assumption that the comparison volatility is indicative of future trends, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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23. Parent Entity Information

information relating to iSelect Limited 2012 2011
$'000 $'000

Current Assets 14,706 11,284
Non-current assets 82,218 41,633
Total assets 96,924 52,917
Current liabilities 36,380 256
MNon-current liabilities 7,533 12,072
Total liabilities 43,913 12,328
Net assets 53,011 40,589
Issued capital 49,759 36,582
Share-based payments reserve 2,384 1,827
Retained earnings 868 2,180
Total shareholders' equity 53,011 40,589
Profit/{loss) of parent entity (1,312) 694
Total comprehensive income of the parent entity {1,312) 694
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Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resclution of the Directors of iSelect Limited we state that:

1 In the opinion of the directors of iSelect Limited (“the Company’):

(a) the consolidated financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 5 to 58 and the
Directors’ report, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i} giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of its
performance, for the financial year ended on that date; and

{ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

(b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

2 There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the group entities identified in Note
1 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities.

3 The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the
chief executive officer and chief financial officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

4. The directors draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a statement of
compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

On behalf of the Board

Damien Waller

Executive Chairman

Melbourne
30 October 2012
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Independent auditor's report to the members of iSelect Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of iSelect Limited which comprises the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the
company iSelect Limited and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the
financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of iSelect Limited are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2(a), the
directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors' report.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Opinion
In our opinion:

a. the financial report of iSelect Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2012
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 2().

gfmr‘%j

Ernst & Young

Melbourne
30 October 2012



